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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Municipal Legislature

Municipali§ of Quebradillas
Quebradillas, Puerto Rico

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financ¡al statements of the governmental act¡v¡ties, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remain¡ng fund information of
the Municipalis of Quebradillas, as of and for the year ended June 30, 201s, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Municipality,s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibilis for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with account¡ng principles generally accepted in the united
states of America; this includes the design, implementalion, and mainienance of ¡nternal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material m¡sstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibili§

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.
we conducted our audit in accordance with audit¡ng standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
fhose standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the f¡nanc¡al statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors,
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatements of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making those risk assessments, the aud¡tors
consider internal control relevant to the ent¡ty's preparation and fair presentation of the
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financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropr¡ate ¡n the
c¡rcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of account¡ng policies used and the reasonableness of
significant account¡ng est¡mates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Governmental Acüvities

As discussed in Note 17 to the financial statements, management has not recorded the
defened outflowlinflows of resources, and net pension liab¡iity in governmental activities,
and, has not recorded an expense for the cunent period change ¡n that l¡abil¡ty. Accounting
principles generally accepted in the un¡tes states of America require that deferreá
outf lows¡/inf lows of resources, and net pension l¡ability attributable to employee services
already rendered and that are not cont¡ngent on a specific event that is ouisid-e the control
of the employer and employee be accrued as deferred outflowlinflows of resources,
liabilities and expenses as employees eam the rights to the pension plan benefits, which
would increase the deferred outf lows/inflows of resources, the liabilities, reduce net
position, and change the expenses of the governmental activities. The amount by which
this departure would affect the defened outf lows/inflows of resources, liabilities, net
posit¡on, and expenses of the governmental activities has not been determined.

Qualified Opinion

ln our opinion, except for the matter described in the "Basis for eualified opinion on
Governmental Activit¡es" paragraph, the financial statements referred to abová present
fairly, in all mater¡al respect, the financial position of the governmental activ¡ties of the
Municipali§ of Quebradillas, as of June 30, 201s, and the respective changes in the
financial position thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accoidance with aicounting
principles generally accepted in the Un¡ted States of America.

Unmodilied Opinions

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respect¡ve f inancial posit¡on of the business-type activities, each malor fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund ¡nformat¡on of the Municipality of euebradillas, as of
June 30,2015, and the respective changes in financial posit¡on, and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with account¡ng principles
generally accepted ¡n the Un¡ted States of America.
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Other Matters

Requi red S upple mentary I nfo rmat¡on

Accounting principles generally accepted ¡n the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 5
to l0 and 50 to 52 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Govemmental Accounting standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operátional,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certa¡n limited procedures to the required
supplementary informat¡on in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
united states of America, which consisted of inquiries of management aubut tná methods
of preparing the informat¡on and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the l¡m¡ted
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Management has omitted required supplementary information related to new pensions
standards that accounting principles generally accepted in the united states of America
require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. such missing
¡nformat¡on, although not a part of the bas¡c financial statements, is required by
Governmental Account¡ng standard Board who considers it to be an essentii part oi
financial reporting for plac¡ng the basic linancial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or histor¡cal conte)i.t. Our op¡nion on the basic financial statements is not
affected by the miss¡ng information.

Other lnformation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial stalements
that collectively comprise the Municipali§'s basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additionat analysiá
as required by u.s. otfice of Management and Budget circular A-133, Audifs of states,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit organizafions, and is not a required part of the bas¡c
financial statements. such information ¡s the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and othei records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures appl¡ed ¡n the audit of the basic f¡nancial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basió
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the united states of America. ln our opinion, the
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schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Feporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

ln accordance with Government Audit¡ng standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 27 ,201 6, on our consideration of the Municipality of Quebradillas' internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report ¡s to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report ¡s an integral part of an aud¡t
performed in accordance wilh GovernmentAuditing Standardsin considering Municipality
of Quebradillas' internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

San Juan, Puerto Rico
January 27,2016
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Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Municipali§ of Ouebradillas

Management's Dlscussion and Analysis

Year Ended June 30, 2015

The Munic¡pal¡ty of Quebradiltas (the "Municipalig') discussion and analysis has been des¡gned
with the followings goals:

Ass¡st the reader in focusing on s¡gn¡f icant financ¡al ¡ssues,
Provide an overview of the Municipality's f¡nancial act¡vity,
ldentify changes in the Munic¡pal¡ty's f¡nancial position (its abit¡ty to address the next and
subsequent year challenges),
ldentify any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget), and;
ldent¡ty indiv¡dual fund issues or concerns.

s¡nce the Management's Discussion and Analysis is designed to focus on the current year
activit¡es, resulting changes and curren y known facts, pleáse read it in conjunction with the
Mun¡cipalit/s f ¡nancial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o The Municipal¡ty's net position of governmental activ¡ties increased by $457,663.. The General Fund (the pr¡mary operat¡ng fund) refrected, on a cunent financial
resource basis, an ¡ncrease of S476,593.. On a budgetary basis, actual revenues exceed actual expend¡tures by $9gg,972.. Cap¡tal expenditures amounted lo $TZO,22O.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

Th¡s annual report consists of a series of new f inancial statements w¡th a change in the focus from
previous financ¡al statements. The new focus is on both the Municipality as a ñhole (government-
wide) and the major individual funds. Both perspectives (government-w¡de and majói fund) a¡ow
the user to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for compar¡son (yeár to year or
government to government) and enhance lhe Municipality,s accountability.

Government-Wlde Financial Statements

fhe Government-wide F¡nancial Statements are designed to prov¡de users of the f¡nanc¡al
stalements with a broad overview of the Munic¡pal¡ty's finances ¡n a manner similar to private-
sector companies.

The statement of Net Position presents informalion on all of the Municipal¡ty,s assets and
liabilit¡es, with the difference between both reported as net position. over timá, increases or
decreases in net pos¡tion may serve as a useful ¡ndicator of whether the financial posit¡on of the
Mun¡cipality is ¡mproving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Act¡v¡ties presents information show¡ng how the Mun¡cipality's net posit¡on
changed during the most recent f¡scal year. All changes ¡n net posit¡on are iepoied as ioon as
the underly¡ng event g¡v¡ng rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the Statement of Act¡vities that will only
result ¡n cash flows in future f¡scal periods. The Statement of Activities is focused on both the

a)
b)
c)

d)
e)



Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Municipality of Quebradillas

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended June

gross and net cost of various activities, wh¡ch are provided by the government,s general tax and
olher revenues. Th¡s is intended lo summarize and simplify tñe usér's analysis of-cost of various
governmenlal services.

Both government-wide financial statements distinguish governmental activ¡ties of the Municipal¡ty
from business-§pe act¡vit¡es that are ¡ntended to recover sign¡ficant portion of their costs from
fees and charges. Governmental activit¡es include general gorernmeni, public safe§, culture and
recreat¡on, health and welfare and public work. Businéss-§pe activities includ'e park ancl
recreat¡on util¡ties.

The report on lhe governmenta-l activ¡t¡es was qualilied because the Munic¡pal¡ty has not recorded
the deferred outf lows/inf lows of resources, and net pension liabilis in goveinméntal activities and,
has not recorded an expense for the curent period change in inat-tiabitity, as required under
stalement No. 68 of the Government Accounting standard Boañ, Accointing aid Financial
Report¡ng for Pensions. lt was because the Emplóyees' Ret¡rement System of iie Government
of fuerto Rico did not prov¡de the data related io pension expensó and ootigation 

'change

attributable to the Mun¡cipat¡ty.

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financ¡al Statements provide detailed ¡nformation about the Municipal¡ty,s most
signif icant f unds, not the Municipal¡ty as a whole.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same funct¡ons reported asgovernmental act¡vities in the Government W¡de Financiai Statements. However, Lnlike the
Government W¡de Financ¡al Statements, Government Fund Financial Statements foóus on near
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information is useful in evaluating the Mun¡c¡pality,s
near term financial requiremenls.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government wide financial
statements, ¡t is useful to compare the information presented for goverñmental funds with sim¡lar
¡nformation presented for governmental act¡v¡ties in the government wide financ¡al statements.
By doing so, users of the bas¡c.financ¡al statements may better understand the long{erm impact
of lhe Municipality's near term f inancial decisions. Both óf the Governmental Fund Balance Sileet
and the Governmental Fund statement of Revenues, Expenditures and changes in Fund
Balances prov¡de a reconciliation to facilitate th¡s compar¡son between gorernm"nál funds and
governmental activ¡ties.

lnfrastructure Assets

Historically, a government's largest group of assets (infrasfucture - roads, bridges, traffic s¡gnals,
underground p¡pes [unless assoc¡ated with a utili§], etc.) have not been reportéd nor depreóiated
in government financial statements. GASB 3+ requlres inat these assets úe valued and ,eported
with¡n the governmental column of the Government-w¡de statements. Additionally, the
government must elecl to either (a) Deprec¡ate these assets over their estimated useful lifé or (b)



Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Municipality of Quebradillas

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Develop a system of asset management designed to maintain the serv¡ce del¡very potential to
near perpetu¡ty. lf the government develops the asset management system (ihe modified
approach), which periodically (at least every third year), by category, measures and üemonstrates
¡ts maintenance of locally establ¡shed levels of service stándards, ihe government may record its
cost of ma¡ntenance in lieu of depreciation. The information about the dondition and máintenance
of condition of the government infrastructure assets should assist financial statement users in
evaluating a local government and its perlormance over time. The Mun¡cipal¡ty has elected to
deprec¡ate infrastructure assets ¡nstead of using the mod¡fied approach.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPAL¡TY AS A WHOLE

Net Posil¡on

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government,s financial
p9!,!¡9!. The Mun¡cipal¡ty's net pos¡tion of governmental activities totaled $-ge.o m¡tt¡on at the end
of 2015, compared to $31 .5 mill¡on at the end of the previous year. The bus¡ness-type áctivities'
net position totated $2.6 miil¡on at the end of 2015, compared io $z.o of previous yéár.

The largest portion ol the Mun¡c¡pal¡ty's net position consists of the investment made throughout
the years ¡n cap¡tal assets such as land, build¡ngs, equipment and ¡nfrastructure. The Municipali§
uses these cap¡tal assets to provide services to its cit2ens; consequenfly, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although, the Municipality,s investment ín its capital ássets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the reéources needed to repay th¡s debt must
be provided from the Debt Service Fund, since the capital assets themselves cañnot be used to
liquidate these liabil¡t¡es. The amounts restricted for debt service represents anothér jortion ofthe net pos¡t¡on, and these are resources subject to external restrictions for the 

'purposes
explained above.

fhe unrestricted defic¡t of governmental acl¡vit¡es is the consequence of previous budgets wh¡ch
did not provide funding for incurred long-term obligations sucÉ as com[ensated absénces and
cla¡ms and iudgments among oth€rs. H.istorically, such obl¡gations have been budgeted on 

" 
pay

3: yo., go bas¡s w¡thout provid¡ng funding for their fulure tiqu¡dation. coniequenily, 
'thó

Municipality cannot draw from its existing assets to provide services to its cit¡zens and depends
on its tax¡ng ability to continue ¡ts operations. The restricted portion consists of monies reserved
for debt service and future capital expenditures.
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irunic¡pality ot Ouebrad¡[as

Condensed Statement of tlet Assets

June 30, 2015 and 2014

Governrnental A.tivitiés Business-type Actrvities Total

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Current assets

Capital assets

Total assets

Current l¡abil¡iies

Oeferred inflor,t,S ol
resources

fbncurrent liabilities

Totat t¡abilit¡es

lnvested ¡n capital assets,

net of related debt

Restricted

Lh restricted

lotal net assets

3,893,686 3,811,592

s02,040 537,641

r2.689,561 12.621.620

17,045.287 16,970,853

S 15,909,690 S 15,031,572 § 399,458 S 278,.L13 S 16,249,t48 S 1S,310.005
33,r61,097 33,467,t18 2,316,084 2,364,494 35,477,181 35,331,612
49.070,787 48.498,690 2,655,542 2,642,92? 51,726,929 51 .1 41 .61 7

30,325,633

5,585,679

(3.925.806)

19,249 11,920 3,912,935 3,823,512

502,040 537.641

- 12,689,56'1 12.621.620
19.249 11.920 17,104,536 16,9a2,779

30,331,654 2.316,084 2,364,494 32,641.717 32.696,148
2p36Á75 s.585,673 2,936,475
(1,740,2921 320,209 266.513 (3.605,597) 11.473.779\

§ 31.985.500 S 31,527,837 S 2,636,293 s 2,631,007 S 34,621,793 S 34.158.844

Changes in Net Pos¡tion - Governmental Activities

The Municipal¡ty's net posit¡on ¡ncreased by $457,663, twenty seven (27%) percent of the
Mun¡cipal¡ty's total revenue came from taxes generated by the General Fund.' Federal Grants
was th¡rty three (33"/d percent, while the State Contribut¡ons made forty (40%) percent of the total
revenues. The Munic¡pality's expenses cover a range of services. The largesi expenses were for
general government, public works and publ¡c safety.

Changes in Net Pos¡tion - Business-type Activ¡ties

The Mun¡c¡pality's net posit¡on increased by $5,296; the tolal revenues came from charges of
services of the operating activ¡t¡es of business-§pe.

FINANCSAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY'S INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

As noted earl¡er, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compl¡ance
with finance-related legal requ¡rements.
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Governmental Funds

The.focus of the Mun¡cipal¡ty's governmentalfunds is to provide ¡nformation on near-term inflows,
outflows, and 

-balances 
of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the

Municipali§'s financing requirements. ln particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a
useful measure of a government's net resources available for spend¡ng at the ená of the fiscal
yeat.

As of the end of the current liscal year, the Municipality's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $1 1 ,869,26 an ¡ncrease of 9894,597 in comparison wiih the prior year.
There are reservations of Iund balance amounting to $5,967,939.

The general fund is included w¡thin the governmental funds; it ¡s the ch¡ef operating fund of the
Mun¡c¡pality. As of June 30, 20i 5, the general fund has a batance ol $6,014,245. Tñe prior year
surplus of $5,537,652 was increased by $476,599 during f¡scal year 2015.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Overlhe course of the year, the Municipality Council revised the Mun¡cipal¡ty's budget to reclassify
certain expend¡tures among the d¡fferent governmental functions. Such'reclass-if¡cations were
necessary to pfovide for the developments that reflected the Municipali§'s finances.

Revenues of the current year.had increased by $196,991 compared with the pr¡or year. The
increase in fund balance ¡s related to a transfer-¡n from Debt Services Funcl and ¡nóreases ¡n
revenues. The actual revenues increased the rev¡sed budget revenues by $s70,000. The most
signif¡cant var¡ances were the municipal and sales use táxes with $69,-530 and $128,g10 on
surplus, respectively.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRANON

Cap¡ta¡ Assets

The Municipal¡ty's ¡nvestment ¡n capital assets as of June 30, 201s, amounted to s4g.2 million,
net of accumulated deprec¡at¡on of S14.1 million, leaving a net book value of $33.2 million. These
investments in capital assets included land, buildings ánd buildings improvements, equ¡pment,
intangibles, and construct¡on in progress. lnfrastructure assets are items that are normally
immovable and of value only to the state, such as roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainagá
systems, lighting systems, and s¡milar items.

The Mun¡cipal¡ty f¡nances a significant portion of ¡ts construction activ¡ties through bond
¡ssuances. The proceeds from bond issuances designated lor construclion act¡viies are
comm¡tted in its ent¡rety for such purposes and cannot be used for any other purposes.

The Municipali§ acquired a tolal of $834,34t1 of capital assets during the fiscat year ZOt 4-2015.
Capiial assets acquired dur¡ng the year were as lollows:
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Year Ended June 30,2015

. Construction ¡n Progress - $174,209. Building and building ¡mprovements - $463,951. Acquis¡tion of Equipment and Vehicles - $196,189

Other pro.iects related to repair and maintenance of
during the year 2015.

roads (not capitalized) was development

Debt Admin¡strat¡on

The Puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the issuance ot general obl¡gat¡on
municipal bonds and notes for the payment of which the good faith, credit aná taxing power o,
each mun¡cipal¡ty may be pledged

The appl¡cable law also requ¡res that ¡n order for a mun¡cipality to be able to ¡ssue additional
general obligation bonds and notes such mun¡c¡pality must havL sufficient ,,payment capacity.,,
Act No. il prov¡des that a municipatity has sufficiént "payment capacity''to ¡ncur adiitional
general obligat¡on debt il the deposits in such municipality'é Redemption Fund and the annuat
amounts collected w¡th respect.to.such municipality's Spe¿ial Additional Tax (as defined below),
as projected by GDB, will be sufficient to service to matuiity the municipali§'s outstandint generat
obligat¡on debt and the additional proposed general obtigátion debt ("Fayment c"pai¡v:1.

The Municipal¡ty is required under applicable law to levy the Spec¡al Additional Tax in such
amounts as shall be required for the payment of ¡ts general obligation municipal bonds and notes.
ln add¡t¡on, principal and interest on all general obligation municipal bonds ánd notes, and on all
municipal notes issued in anticipation oJ the issuanée of general obligation bonds issued by the
Municipal¡ty constitute a first lien on the Municipati§,s Éasic Tax évenues. eccoráin!ry, Úre
Municipality's Basic Tax revenues would be avá¡lable to make debt service payments ongeneral obligat¡on mun¡cipal bonds and notes to the erfent that the Special Additionáíiax lev¡eo
by the_Municipatity, together with moneys on deposit in the Municipal¡tys Redemption Funo, are
not suffic¡ent to cover such debt service. lt has never been necessary tó apply Bas¡c Taxes to pay
debt service on general obl¡gation debt of the Municipal¡ty.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXTYEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The Municipali§ relies pr¡marily on property and municipal taxes as well as federal grants to carry
out the governmental activ¡ties. Historically, property and municipal taxes haie béen very
pred¡ctable with increases of approx¡mately f¡ve percent. Federal graát revenues may vary if new
grants are ava¡lable but the revenue also is very predictable.

FINANCIAL CONTACT

The Municipality's linanc¡al slatements are des¡gned to present users (citizens, taxpayers,
customers, investors and creditors) with a general overview of the Municipaiity's finances and to
demonstrale the Municipal¡ty's accountab¡lity. lf you have questions about íhe report or need
additional financial ¡nformation, contact CPA Mariannet Padín Cubero, Chief Financial Otficer on
the Finance Offices in the Central Town, Quebradillas, puerto Rico.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO FICO
MUNICIPALITY OF OUEBRADILLAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITTON

JUNE 30, 2015

Governmental
Activiiiei

Eusiness-Type
Activities

Total Pr¡mary
Govefnment

AssetB

Cash ¡n bank (Notes 2 and 4)
Cash with f¡scal agent (Notes 2 and 4)
Accounts rece¡vable:

Property taxes
Other

Due from other agenc¡es (Note g)
Capital assets, net (Note 1O)

Total assels

L¡abilities. Deferred lnflows of Resources.
and Net Position

L¡abil¡t¡es
Accounts payable and accrued liab¡l¡t¡es
Oue to other agencies (Note i 1)
Matured bonds and interest payable
Cla¡ms and judgments
Noncurrent liabit¡ties (Note 14):

Oue within one year I

Due ¡n more than one year
Accrued ¡nterest

Totat tiab¡t¡ties

Deferred lnrlows of Resources
(Notes 6 and l2)

Uneamed revenue from:
Municipal license taxes (Note 12)

Total deferred inflows ol resources

Net Position
lnvestment in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:

Debt service
Capital projects

Unrestricted (def icit)

Total net posit¡on

r 9,249

16,583,247 't9.249 16 60' áoA

7,510,306
4,983,989

10,090
-t,295

3,404,010
33,16't,097

49,070,787

339,458

2,316,084

2,655,542

7,849,764
4,983,989

10,090
1 ,295

3,404,010
35,477.181

5't,726,329

498,667
2,837,030

550,149
7.840

534,512
11,6.14,136

498,667
2,856,279

550,149
7,840

5U.5'12
11,644,136

510,9135r 0.913

502,040

502,040

30,325,633

1 ,613,052
3,972,621

(3,925,806)

s 31,985,500

integral part of these
_ 11 _

2,3'16,084

320,209

s 2,636,293

502,040

502,040

32,641 ,717

1,6 t3,052
3,972,621

(3,605,597)

s 34,621,793

The accompanying notes are an basic f inancial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF OUEBRADILLAS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Program F¡evenues
Net (Exp€nse) Revenues and

Changes in Not Pos¡t¡on
Operal¡ng Cap¡tal Pr¡mary Govefnment

Chafgos for Grants and Grant8 and Governmontal Bua¡noss-Type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contr¡bul¡ona Contribut¡ons Act¡v¡t¡€s Activ¡ti€s

Govornmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Health and welfare
Public work

$ 7,325,039 $ 341,792 $ $ $ (6,9e3,247) $
1,454,538

sog,608
3,805,955
4,4 t 5,665

1,O39,153
3, t 79,961

(1,454,538)
529,545

(62s,994)
606,324 (3,809,341)

lnterest on long-term debt 336,803 (336,8O3)
Total governmental act¡vit¡es 17,A47,60A 341,792 4,219,114 606,324 (12,680,378)

Bus¡neas-Type Activ¡t¡es:
Aquatic Park 297 ,657 302,943 - 5,286

rotar pr¡mary sovernmenr _§_l_9J19¿99_ _§___q44!_ _§___!4917_ _§_____e99,331 _§___113,699,32q_ _§________9¿99_

General revenues:
Properly taxes (Note 5)
Munic¡pal l¡cense taxes (Nole 6)
Sales and use taxes (Not€ 7)
Grants and contr¡butions not restr¡cted to specif ¡c programs
lnt€rest, f¡nes, and p€nalties
Miscellaneous

Total general revenues
Change in net pos¡t¡on

Net pos¡t¡on at beg¡nn¡n9 of year

Net position at end o, year

2,471,105
779,530

1 ,383,993
7,324,362

'1,14,993

I ,034,O58
r 3,138,04.1

457,663 5,286
31,527,A37 2,631 ,OO7

$ 31,985,500 $ 2,636,293

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statemenls.
-12-
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUEBTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF OUEBRADILLAS

BALANCE SHEET-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30,2015

Health and
Human Other Total

Genoral Debl Service Serv¡ces Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

$6,045,997 $ $ 56,850 $ 1,407,459 $ 7,510,306

Assets

Cash in bank (Notes 2 and 4)
Cash with fiscal agent (Notes 2 and 4) 296,066 2,159,111
Accounts receivable:

Property taxes
Other

Due from other agencies (Note 8) 2,g45,ggo
Due from other funds (Note 9) 332,300

Total assets

2,534,812 4,983,989

10,090 10,090
1,2951,295

336,094 222,536 3,404,010
72,520 404,820

$ 9,519,743 $ 2,rm,201 $ 392,944 $ 4,238,622 $ 16,314,s10

The accompany¡ng notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
-'t3-



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF OUEBRADILLAS

BALANCE SHEET-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUEO)

JUNE 30,2015

General
Fund

Health and
Oebt Service tluman

Fund Service Fund

Other Total
Governmental Governmental

Funds FundsLiabilities and Fund Balances

L¡ab¡l¡ties
Accounts payable and accrued
liab¡lit¡es

Due to other funds (Note 9)
Due to other agenc¡es (Note I 1)
General obligations: (Note 14)

Bonds
lnlerest
Total l¡ab¡lities

Deferred lnflows of Resources
Unearned revenue f rom:

Mun¡cipal license taxes (Note 12)

Total deferred inllows of resources

Fund Balances
Restr¡cted
Committed
Ass¡gned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabil¡t¡es, deferred ¡nflows of
resources, and fund balances

3,003,458 550.149 086 266,001

$ s3,908
72,520

2,837,030

ü-
123,086

56,787
209,214

150,695
4U,820

2,837,030

365,000
185,149

365,000
185,149

3,942,694

502,040
040

1,613,052 269,858 1,533,078
2,425,197

6,820

3,415,988
2,425,197

26,65419,834
5,994,411
6,014,245

$ 9,519,743

o52613

7.526 6,001 ,937

-3.972.621 
11,869,776

$ 2,163,201 $ 392,944 $ 4,2s8,622

The accompany¡ng notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
-14-
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QU EBRADILLAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSINON

JUNE 30,2015

Total fund balances - governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

. Capital assets, net, used ¡n governmental activities are
not current financial resources and therefore are not
reported in the governmental funds balance sheet.

. Some liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due
and payable ¡n the current period and therefore are not
reported ¡n the governmental funds. (Note 3)

Net position of governmental activ¡ties

$ 11,869,776

33,161,097

(13,045,373)

$ 31,985,500

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
-15-



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF OUEBRADILLAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITUBES, AND CHANGES ¡N FUND BALANCES-GOVERNMENfAL FUNOS

FOB THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEO JUNE 30, 2015

c6n6ral Fund
Debt Serv¡cs

Fund

Health and
Human

servlcss Fund

Other Total
Govsrnmental Governmenlal

Funda Funds

REVENUES

Property laxes (Noto 5)
Municipal licenss taxes (Note 6)
Sales and use taxes (Noto 7)
Licenses. p€rmits, and oiher local taxes
Charges lor serv¡ces
lntergovernmental revenues (Note 13):

Federal grants and contributions
Slale contr¡butions

lnterest. f¡nes, and penalties
Olher revenues

Tola¡ revenues

EXPENDITURES
Curent:
General government
Public safety
Health and welfare
Cu¡lure and recreatron
Public works
Capilaloutlays

Debt service:
Principal
lnterest and other

Tolal expeñdilures

Excess of revenues over (únder) expend¡tures

oTHEB FINANCING SOUñCES (USES)
Transfers ¡n

Translers out
Total other iinanc¡ng sources (uses)

Net change in total lund balünces

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

s 1 ,97O,422
779,530
948,199
283,962

57,830

6,293,287
139,200

1,002,989

500,683

435,794

1,726

3,485,026

33s5¡¡'

1,340,412
1,031,075

4,067

2,471,105
779,530

1,383,993
283,962

57,830

4,425,434
7,324,362

144.993
31.069 ,l,034,058

2.406.623 18,305,271

6,374,262
'| ,407 ,723

675,777
241 ,',t 47

2,'132,s23

3,127,262
167,447

177,333
1,093

1,431 ,403
770,220

6,551,595
1,408.816
3.803,039

408,594
3,563,926

7'to,220

493,185493,r85
41 1,299--]¡¡gr¡-A- - 3óT?T¿- --214?66-

643,9A7 33,719 190,317

1374
(16a,772\
(167,394)

4't1.299---7586¡26- ---7V1ffi
26,574 894,597

'170,150

(170,1s0)

476,593 201,113

lD 5 s37.6s2 1.411.939 79,541 3,946,047 '10,975,179

$ 6,0'r4,24s $ 1,6f3,052 $ 269,858 $ 3,972,621 $ ',11,869,776
:

¡ntegral part of these basic financial statements.
-16-
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUNO BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACT¡VITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2015

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds S g94,S97

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement ol activities are
different because:

. Govemmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activit¡es, the cost of those assets ¡s allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

. Depreciation expense on capital assets ¡s reported in the statement of
activities, but they do not require the use o, current financial resources.
Therefore, depreciation expense is not reported as expenditure in
govemmental funds.

. Governmental funds report pr¡ncipal payments on long_term obligations as
expend¡tures, whereas the principal payments reduces the long-term
obligations ¡n the statement of activities.

. Change in accrued interest expense wh¡ch does not requ¡re the use of
current f inancial resources.

. Some expenses reported ¡n the statement of activ¡ties do not requlre
the use of current financial resources: therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in govemmental f unds.

Changes in net position of governmental activ¡ties

770,220

(1,076,241)

493,185

74,496

(698,594)

$ 457.663

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
-17-



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF OUEBRADILLAS

STATEMENT OF NET POS¡IION
PROPRIETARY FUND

JUNE 30, 2015

Assets

Cash in bank (Notes 2 and 4)
Capital assets, net (Note l0)

Total assets

L¡abilit¡es and Net Pos¡tlon

L¡abil¡ties
Due to agency (Note 1 1)

Total liabilities

Net Posit¡on
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net pos¡tion

Aquatic Park
Fund

s 339,4s8
2,316,084

2,655,542

19,249

19,249

2,316,084
320,209

s 2,636,293

The accompany¡ng notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO R¡CO
MUNICIPALIW OF OUEBRADILLAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE F¡SCAL YEAB ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

Total operating revenues

OPERANNG EXPENSES
Salaries
Fringe benefits
lnsurance
Office materials
Equipment
Maintenance materials
Miscellaneous
Utilities
Bank charges
Depreciation (Note 10)

Total operating expenses

CHANGE ¡N NET POSMON

TOTAL NET POSITION, BEGINN¡NG

TOTAL NET POSITION, ENDING

Aquatic Park
Fund

$ 302,943
302,943

98,010
8,s23

12,143
2,177
3,797

31,770
15,327
75,714

1,786
48.410

297,657

5,286

2,631,007

s 2,636,293

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICI PALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees of services
Payment for insurance
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided by operating activities:

NET INCREASE IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AT ENDING OF YEAR

RECONCIL|ANON OF OPERANNG INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACNVITIES

Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating act¡v¡t¡es:

Depreciation
lncrease ¡n accounts payable

Total ad¡ustments

Net cash provided by operat¡ng activ¡ties

Aquatic Park
Fund

$ 302,943
(98,010)
(12,143)

(131,76s)
61,02s

61,025

278,433

7,329

55,739

s 339,4s8

$ 5,286

48,410

s 61,025

The accompany¡ng notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
-20 -



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNIC¡PALIW OF OUEBRADILLAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

1. ORGANIZATION

The Municipality of Quebradillas, Puerto Rico (Municipali§) was founded in 1823.
The Municipality is a political legal entity with full legislative and administrative
facult¡es in every affair of the mun¡cipal character, w¡th perpetual succession
existence and legal personali§, separate and independent from the central
government of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The Municipality provides a full
range of services including health, public works, environmental control, education,
public safety, public housing and communi§ development, culture and recreation as
well as many other general and administrative services.

The Municipal Government comprises the executive and legislative branches. The
execut¡ve power is exercised by the Mayor, and the legislat¡ve by the Mun¡c¡pal
Assembly, which has 14 members. The members of these branches are elected
every four years in the Puerto R¡co general elect¡ons.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the Municipal¡ty have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the Un¡ted States of
America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental entities. The Governmental
Account¡ng Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The financial information of the Mun¡c¡pality is presented ¡n th¡s report as follows:

o Management's Discussion and Analysis - lntroduces the bas¡c financial
statements and provides an analytical overyiew of the Municipality's financial
activ¡ties.

Government - Wide Financial Statements - The reporting model includes financial
statements prepared using full accrual of accounting for all of the government's
activities. This approach includes not just current assets and liabilities, but also
capital assets and long-term liabilities (such as buildings and infrastructure,
including bridges and roads, and general obligation debt).

Statement of Net Position - The statement of net pos¡tion is designed
to d¡splay the financ¡al position of the Municipali§, including capital assets and

-21 -



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF OUEBRADILLAS

NOTES TO THE FINANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2OI5

infrastructure. The net position of the Municipalis will be broken down into three
categories; invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restr¡cted; and
unrestricted.

o statement of Program Activities - The government - wide statement of activities
report expenses and revenues in a format that focuses on the cost of each of the
government's functions. The expense of individual functions is compared to the
revenues generated directly by the function.

. Budgetary comparison schedules - Demonstrat¡ng compliance with the adopted
budget ¡s an important component of a government's accountability to the publ¡c.
Under the reporting model, the Municipalis will continue to provide budgetary
comparison information in the¡r financial statements. An ¡mportant change,
however, is a requirement to add the government's original budget to the currént
comparison of final budget and actual results.

The following is a summary of the more significant policies.

a. Reporting Enti§

A report¡ng entity is comprised of the primary government, component un¡ts and
other organizations that are included to ensure that f¡nancial statements are not
misleading. The primary government consists of all funds, departments, boards
and agencies that are not legally separate from the Municipal¡ty and for which the
Munic¡pality is financially accountable.

The Municipality's management has considered all potential component units
(whether governmental, not-for-profit, or prof¡t-or¡ented) for which it may be
financially accountable, and other legally separate organizations for which the
Munic¡pality is not financially accountable, but the nature and significance of their
relationship with the Municipality may be such that exclusion of their basic
financial statements from those of the Municipality would cause the accompanying
bas¡c f¡nancial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Accordingly, a legally
separate organization would be reported as a component unis of the Municipality
¡f all of the following cr¡teria are met:

1 ) The Mayor appoints a voting maloris of an organization,s governing body and,
either (1) the Municipality has the abilis to impose ¡ts will on that oiganiiation
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF OUEBRADILLAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

or (2) the organ¡zat¡on has the potential to provide specific financial benefits to,
or impose spec¡fic financial burdens on the Municipality.

2) The economic resources, for wh¡ch the Municipali§ is entitled, either received
or held by the separate organizat¡on, are entirely or almost entirely for the
direct benefit of the Municipality or its constituents.

GAAP details two methods of presentation: blending the financial data of the
component units' balances and transactions in a manner similar to the
presentation of the Municipality's balances and transactions or discrete
presentat¡on of the component un¡ts' financial data in columns separate from the
Municipality's balances and transactions.

The Municipality's management has concluded that, based on the aforementioned
criteria, there are no legally separate entities or organizations that should be
reported as component uniis of the Municipality for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2015.

b. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net pos¡t¡on and
the statement of changes ¡n net posit¡on) report information on all the activilies ol
the Municipality.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to wh¡ch the direct expenses
of a given function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specif¡c function or segment. Program
revenues include: 1) charges to customers or appl¡cants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment; and 2) grants and contribut¡ons that are restricted to meeting the
operational or cap¡tal requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead
as general revenues.

The effect of all inter-fund activities (assets, liab¡l¡ties, revenues, expenditures and
other financing sourceluses among governmental funds) have been eliminated
from the governmental-wide financial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUN]CIPAL]TY OF QUEBRADILLAS

NOTES TO THE FTNANCTAL STATEMENTS (CONTTNUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2015

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds and
propr¡etary funds. Malor governmental funds are reported on separate columns to
segregate transactions related to certain functions or activities in separate funds in
order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance.

These statements present each major fund as a separate column on the fund
financial statements; all non-majorfunds are aggregated and presented in a single
column.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement
Presentat¡on

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable
measurement focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the
type of resources being measured such as current financial resources or
economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions
or events for recognition in the financial statements.

The government-w¡de financial statements are reported using the economic
rcsources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounfing. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current
financial resources measurements focus and lhe modified accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if
they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related
to compensated absences, and claims and judgments, are recorded only when
payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. lssuance of long-term debt and acquisitions undercapital
leases are reported as other financing sources.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUN¡CIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS

NOTES TO THE F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOB THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Proper§ taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interests associated
with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so
have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Entitlements are
recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time
requ¡rements, and when the amount is received during the period or within the
availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days or year-end).
Expenditures-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying
expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibilis requirements have been
met, and the amount is received during the period or with¡n the availability period
for this revenue source (within 60 days of year-end). All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
government.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
government's pol¡cy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestr¡cted
resources as they are needed.

The Municipality reports the follow¡ng major governmental funds:

1) General Fund

This is the operating fund of the Municipality and accounts for all financial
resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

2) Debt Service Fund

This fund is used to account for the resources accumulated and payments
made for principal and interest on long-term general obligat¡on debt of
governmental funds.

3) Health and Human Services Fund

This fund account for revenue sources to provide essent¡al human services
such as improving maternal and infant health, pre-school education and
services, prevent child abuse and domestic violence, and medical and social
science research including the prevention of the outbreak of infectious d¡sease
and immunization services.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS

NOTES TO THE FINANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONTTNUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

The government reports the following major proprietary fund:

The Aquatic Park accounts for the operat¡on, ma¡ntenance, administration of
aquatic park facil¡ties. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues are charges to customers for sales
and services. Operating expenses includes the cost of sales and seruices,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on cap¡tal assets.

Cash and Cash with Fiscal Agent

The Municipality's Finance D¡rector is responsible for ¡nvesting available
resources. The Municipality is restricted by law to invest only in savings accounts
with banks qualified as a depository of public funds by the Puerto Flico Treasury
Department (PHTD) or ¡n ¡nstruments of the Government Development Bank for
Puerto Rico (GDB). The Municipality's policy is to invest any excess cash in
certificates of deposits with ¡nstitutions qualified by the pRTD. Earnings from
these funds are recorded in the corresponding fund.

Cash with fiscal agent in the capital projects fund consists of unused proceeds
from appropriations from the Legislature Assembly of puerto Rico, for the
payment of current liabilities, and bonds and notes ¡ssued for the acquisition and
construction of major cap¡tal ¡mprovements. Cash with fiscal agent in the debt
service fund represents special additional property tax collect¡ons withheld by the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and restricted for the payment of the Municipal¡h/s
debt service, as established by law.

The Municipali§ considers all investments with an original matur¡ty of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

lnterf und Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as e¡ther
due to/from other funds (¡.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or advances
to/from other funds (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other
outstanding balances between funds are reported as due to/from other funds.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPAL¡W OF OUEBRAD¡LLAS

NOTES TO THE F|NANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTTNUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAB ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

f. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure (which
is normally immovable and of value only to the Municipality, such as roads,
bridges, streets'sidewalks, and drainage system), are reported in the applicable
governmental or component units columns ¡n the government-wide financial
statements.

Capital assets purchased or acquired are carried at historical cost or estimated
historical cost. contributed assets are recorded at fair market value as of the date
donated. Addit¡ons, ¡mprovements and other capital ouilays that significantly
extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs
and maintenance are expensed as incuned.

Depreciation in capital assets ¡s calculated
follow¡ng est¡mated useful lives:

lnfrastructure
Buildings and building ¡mprovements
Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles and equipment

g. Fund Balances

on the straight-line basis over the

Useful Life

20-50 years
20-50 years

5-20 years
5-20 years

The Municipality adopted the prov¡sions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund
Balance Repofting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB No. 54),
which enhanced the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer
fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied. This siatement
establishes fund balance classificat¡ons that comprise a hierarchy based primarily
on the extent to which the Municipalis is bound to observe constraints imposeá
upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds.

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB No. 54, the accompanying fund financial
statements report fund balance amounts that are considered nonspendable, such
as fund balance associated w¡th inventories. other fund balances have been
reported as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned, based on the
relat¡ve strength of the constraints that control how specific amounts can be spent,
as described as follows:
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1) Nonspendable - Represent resources that cannot be spent readily with cash or
are legally or contractually required not be spent, including but not limited to
¡nventories, prepaid items, and long term balances of inierfund loans and
accounts receivable.

2) Restricted - Represent resources that can be spent only for the specif¡c
purposes stipulated by constitutional provisions, external resource providers
(externally imposed by creditors or grantors), or through enabling lágislation
(that is, legislation that creates a new revenue source and restrióts its use¡.
Effect¡vely, restrict¡ons may be changed or lifted only with the consent óf
resource providers.

3) Committed - Represent resources used for specific purposes, imposed by
formal action of the Municipal's highest level of decision making'authori§
(Municipal Legislature through resorutions and ordinances) and cán on! bá
changed by a similar law, ordinance or resolution, no later than the end of
fiscal year.

4) Assigned - Represent resources intended to be used by the Municipality for
specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be clasiified as resirictád or
commiüed (generally executive orders approved by the Mayor). lntent can be
expressed by the Municipal Legislature, the Mayor or by an official or body to
which the Municipal Legislature delegates authority iñ conformity with ihe
Autonomous Municipal¡ties Act of puerto Rico, as amended. ln govérnmentar
funds other than the general fund, assigned fund balance re-presents the
remaining amount that is not restr¡cted or committed.

5) unassigned - Represent the residual classif¡cation for the Munic¡pal¡ty,s
general fund and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other
classif ications. ln other funds, the unassigned classification is used only to
report a deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes for
which amounts had been restricted, commiüed, or assigned.

Negative fund balance amounts are amounts assigned reduced to eliminate the
deficit. consequently, negat¡ve residual amounts ln restr¡cted, committed, and
ass¡gned fund balance classification have been reclassified to unass¡gned fund
balances.
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Negat¡ve fund balance amounts are amounts assigned reduced to el¡minate the
deficit. Consequently, negative residual amounts in restr¡cted, commiüed, and
assigned fund balance classification have been reclassified to unassigned fund
balances.

The Municipality reports resources constrained to stabilization as a spec¡fied
purpose (restricted or committed fund balance in the general fund) only il: (1) such
resources meet the other criteria for those classif ications, as described above and
(2) the circumstances or condit¡ons that indicate the need for stabilization are
identified in suffic¡ent detail and are not expected to occur routinely. However, the
Municipali§ has not entered into any stabilization-like arrangements, nor has set
aside material financial resources for emergencies and has not established any
formal minimum fund balance amounts as ol and for the fiscal year ended
June 30,2015.

ln s¡tuations when expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are
available in multiple fund balance classif¡cations, the Mun¡cipal¡ty uses restricted
resources f¡rst, and then unrestricted resources. Within unrestricted resources, the
Mun¡c¡pality generally spends committed resources first, followed by ass¡gned
resources, and then unassigned resources.

The classification of the Municipality's individual governmental funds among
general, debt service, special revenue, and capital projects fund types used in
prior fiscal years for financial reporting purposes was not affected by the
implementation of GASB No. 54.

h. Risk Financing

The Municipality carr¡es insurance to cover casualty, theft, tort claims and other
losses. The insurance pol¡cies are negotiated and paid by the Municipalis for the
year ended June 30, 2015 amounted to $344,545. The current insurance policies
have not been cancelled or terminated. The workers' compensation insurance is
allocated to the Municipality and deducted f rom the gross property tax collections
by the Munic¡pal Revenue Collection Center (the "CHIM) for the fiscal year too,
amounted S261,929 for covering all municipal employees.
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Compensated Absences

Employees are entitled to 30 days vacations leave and 18 days sick leave per
year. Sick leave is recorded as expenditure in the year paid. Employees are
ent¡tled to payment of unused sick leave upon retirement if have been employed
for at least 10 years in the municipal government. On July 1997, state Law 1 52
supra amended the Article 12.016, Section b (2) of the Municipal Law, authorizing
the Municipality to pay any excess of vacations and sick leave accumulated over
the max¡mum previously permitted by law. Calculations must be made until
December 31 of every year. Excess of sick leave must be paid until March 31
nelit every natural year. Excess of vacations can be paid after July 1 of every
fiscal year.

Use ol Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted ¡n the United States of America requires management to make
est¡mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts ol assets and
liabil¡ties, and disclosure of contingent assets and liab¡l¡t¡es at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting per¡od. The most significant
estimates consist of the contribution received from the Puerto Rico Electric Power
Authority and the Municipal Revenue Collection Center caused by the delay of the
notification of the actual revenues and expenditures to the presented ¡n the
financial statements of the agencies mentioned above.

Pensions

For purpose of measuring, the net pens¡on l¡ab¡l¡ty, deferred ouülows of resources
and deferred inllows of resources and pension expenses, information about
fiduciary net posit¡on of the employee's retirement system of the Government of
the Commonwealth of Puerto Bico (ERS) and addition to reduct¡ons from ERS's
l¡ab¡lit¡es net posit¡on should have been determined on the same bas¡s as they are
reported by the ERS. However, as of the date that financial statement has been
issued, the ERS has not issued the f¡nanc¡al statements as of June 30,2014.
Accordingly, the informat¡on related to the pension plans is not available and is not
included in the accompanying financial statements of the Municipalis for the year
ended June 30,2015.
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l. Future Adopt¡on of Accounting pronouncements

The Governmental Accounting standards Board (GASB) has issued the following
statements that the Municipality has not yet adopted:

Statemenl
Number

Adopt¡on Requ¡red
in Fiscal YearStatement Name

72 Fair Value Measurement and Application 2Ol5-16

73 Accounting and Financial Beport¡ng for 2015-16
Pension and Related Assets that are not
within the Scope of GASB Statement 68,
and Amendments to Certa¡n provisions
of GASB Statements 67 and 68

74 Financial Reporting for postemployment 2016-,lz
Benefits Plans other than pens¡on plans

75 Account¡ng and F¡nancial Report¡ng for ZO|Z-19
Postemployment Benefits other the
pensions

76 The Hierarchy of Generaily Accepted 2015-16
Accounting Principles for State and Local
Government

77 Tax Abatement Disclosures 20.16-17

78 Pensions Provided Through Certain 2016-17
Multiple-Employer Def ined Pension plan

79 Certain Enernal lnvestment pool and 2016-.IT
Pool Participants

The impact ol these statements on the Municipality's financial statements has not
yet been determined.
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m. Deferred lnflows

The Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 63, Financial
Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred lnflows of Resources, and
Net Pos¡tion (GASB No. 63).

ln the GFFS, deferred inflows arise when one of the following s¡tuations occur:

. Potent¡al revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and 'available'cr¡ter¡a
for revenue recogn¡tion in the current period (reported as "earned but
unavailable revenue" ¡n the accompanying balance sheet-governmental
funds). As previously discussed, available is defined as due (or past due) at
June 30,2015 and collected within 90 days (60 days for property taxes)
thereafter to pay obligations due at June 30. ln subsequent periods, when
both crileria (measurable and available) are met, the liabil¡ty for deferred
revenue is removed and revenue is recognized.

o The Municipality receives resources before it has a legal cla¡m to them
(reported as "uneamed revenue" ¡n the accompanying balance sheet-
governmental funds). ln subsequent periods, when the revenue recogn¡tion
criterion ¡s met, the liability for deferred inflows is removed and revenue is
recognized.

Deferred inflows at the government-wide level arise only when the Munic¡pal¡ty
receives resources before it has a legal claim to them (reported as "unearned
Íevenue" in the accompany¡ng statement of net position). No "earned but
unavailable revenue" ¡s accounted for in the accompanying statement of net
position.

3. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-W¡DE AND FUND FINANCTAL
STATEMENTS

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance-
governmental funds and net pos¡tion of governmental activ¡ties as reported in the
government-wide statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation
explains that some liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
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current period and therefore are not reported ¡n the funds. The details ol the
approx¡mately $13 million ditferences are as follows:

Bonds payable
Compensated absences
Notes payable
Accrued interest
Other long-term l¡abilities
Christmas bonus

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance governmental funds
to arrive at net position of governmental activ¡ties $13,045,373

DEPOSITS

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government,s
depos¡ts may not be returned to ¡t. Under Puerto R¡co statutes, public funds
deposited in commercial banks must be fully collateralized for the amount deposited
inexcessof federal depository ¡nsurance. All securit¡es pledged as collateral are held
by the Secretary of the Treasury ot Puerto Rico. ln addition, the Municipality
ma¡ntains deposits w¡th the Government Development Bank for puerto Rico (GDB).

The deposits at GDB of approximately $2,534,712arc restricted principallyforcapital
proiects, and the S2,153,111 in the debt service fund are unsecured and
uncollateralized, as no collateral is required to be carried by governmental banks.

The Municipal¡ty maintains ¡ts depos¡ts in one bank located at puerto Rico and
investments with GDB. All k¡nd of deposit is guaranteed by the Federal Deposit
lnsurance Corporation (FDIC) up to S250,000.

The excess is covered by collateral provided by banks and held by the Treasury
Department of the Commonwealth of Puerto R¡co pursuant to applicable laws and
regulations.

PROPEBTY TAXES

The Municipal Revenues collection center (cRlM) of the commonwealth of puerto
Rico is responsible by law for the assessment, levy and collect¡on of all real and

$ 4,360,000
1,623,243
5,637,300

510,913
565,945
347.972
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personal property taxes. The tax on personal property is self-assessed by the
taxpayer. The assessment is made in a return which must be filed with the CFIIM by
May 15 of each year. The tax on real property is assessed by the CRIM. The
assessment is made as of January 1 of each year and is based on estimated current
values of the proper§ as of year 1 957. The tax on personal property must be paid in
tull together with the return on or before May 15. The tax on real property is due in
two equal installments in July 1 and January 1, following the assessment date.

The rates are 8.83% for real property and 6.83% for personal property. The
compos¡tion is as follows:

Real Personal

Basic property
Additional special property - state
Additional special property - mun¡cipal
Discounts made by state to tax payer

6.00% 4.ooo/"
1.03% 1.03%
2.OO% 2.OO%
( .20%\ (.20%l

__8-83% _6.83%

The Municipality's basic property tax rate represents the portion which is appropriated
for general purposes and accounted for in the general fund.

The "Additional special property tax - municipal" is restricted for debt service and
retained by GDB for such purposes and it ¡s recorded as revenue in the Debt Service
Fund when collected by the CRIM and reported to the Municipality.

The "Additional spec¡al property tax - state" is collected by the CRIM for the payment
of principal and interest of general obligation bonds and certa¡n other obligat¡ons
issued by the state government.

Residential real proper§ occupied by its owner is exempt by law from the payment of
property taxes on the first S15,000 of the assessed value. For such exempted
amounts, the Department of Treasury assumes payment of the basic tax to the
Municipality, except for property assessed at less than $3,500, for which no payment
is made. Revenue related to the basic tax on exempt property is recorded in the
General Fund when payments are received from the CRIM.
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Complete exemption from personal property taxes up to an assessment of $50,000 is
granted to merchants with an annual volume of net sales less than S150,000.

Prior to the beginn¡ng of each fiscal year, the CRIM ¡nforms the Municipalis of the
estimated amount of property tax expected to be collected for the ensuring fiscal year.
Throughout the year, the CRIM advances funds to the Municipali§ based on the in¡tial
est¡mated collections. The CRIM is requ¡red by law to prepare a settlement statement
on a fiscal year basis, whereby a comparison is made between the amounts
advanced to the Municipality and amounts actually collected from taxpayers. This
settlement has to be completed on a preliminary basis not later than three months
after fiscal year-end, and a final settlement made not later than six months after year
ends. lf the CRIM rem¡ts to the Mun¡cipality proper§ tax advances, which are less
than the tax actually collected, a receivable from the CRIM is recorded at June 30.
However, if advances exceed the amount actually collected by the CRIM, a payable to
the CRIM is recorded at June 30.

Cunently, the Municipali§ has received the preliminary settlementfrom CRIM related
to fiscal year 201 4- 1 5, but not the final settlement as the six months period after fiscal
year ends, provided by law to CRIM to ¡ssue th¡s, has not yet expired. Management
believes, based in part on the experience from prior years, that when received, the
final settlement from CRIM will not show a significant difference from the preliminary
settlement and that such difference, if any, will not have a material effect on the
financial condition of the Municipali§.

Based on the preliminary settlement already received, during the yearended June 30,
2015, the amount advanced by CRIM exceeded the amount collected by CRIM from
taxpayersandchargesforthesameperiodbyapproximatelygl 17,821. Suchamount
is presented as due from CRIM ¡n the accompanying financial statements. (See note
8).

6. MUNICIPAL LICENSE TD(ES

Municipal License Taxes receivable are recorded in the fiscal year in which payment
is due and, accordingly, represent taxes which are due and uncollected at June 30,
2015. The annual Municipal License Tax is determined based on the gross income of
all commerce and industrial organizat¡ons that have operations in the Municipality ol
Quebradillas, and are not totally or partially exempt under the lndustrial lncent¡ve Law
of Puerto Rico.

-35-



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPAL]TY OF OUEBRADILLAS

NOTES TO THE F|NANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

An annual return of business volume should be filed on or before April 15 of each
year and payable in two equal installments due on July 1 and January 1. A discount
of 5% is allowed when full payment is made on or before April 15.

The rates of municipal license in the Municipalis of Quebradillas are as follows:

Savings and loans associations
Financial institutions

Other organizations:
up to s100,000
$100,000 up to $200,000
Over $200,000

1.OO/"
1.sOY"

.30y"

.400a

.50o/"

The amounts collected in advance are recorded as defened inflows of resources in
the General Fund. The Mun¡cipality invoiced and collected in advance during the
current year approximately $502,040, corresponding to the next fiscal year municipal
license.

7. SALESANDUSETAXES

On January 24,20'14, the Commonwealth's Leg¡slature enacted Act. No. 19, wh¡ch
amended Act. No. 1 , 201 1's lnternal Revenue Code, to create the Municipal Finance
Corporat¡on ('COFIM" by its Spanish acronym). COFIM is ascribed to Government
Development Bank of Puerto Rico ('GDB) and was created to govern the aggregate
municipal debt. Pursuant to this legislation, a GDB depos¡t account, the Municipal
Redemption Fund, was originated in which, effect¡ve on July '1,2014,1% of the sales
and use tax will be collected by COFIM with the purpose of the Municipal Redemption
Fund.

The higher of the first collect¡ons of the prior year product of the sales and use tax or
the applicable fixed income will be the funding source of the COFIM deposit.
Beginn¡ng in the f¡scal year 2014-2015, sales and use tax will be deposited ¡n the
COFIM's Redemption Fund and will be pledged with the purpose of service COFIM'S
obl¡gations. Any excess of the COFIM deposit will be transferred to the municipalit¡es
based on the proportion of the¡r respective collections.
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Act No. 19 also provides for restrictions on the use of the resources to be invested in
solid waste and recycling programs, capital improvements and health and public
safety cost. Amount collected by COFIM will be deposited in accounts of special
funds in the GDB, subject to restrictions.

During each subsequent fiscal year, the first collect¡ons of the sales and use tax w¡ll
be credited at the time of being received in the COFIM's Redemption Fund or any
other special fund, including a fund under the control of the trust that has been
designated in the trust agreement or other contract of pledge under which the COFIM
bonds had been issued or incurred other obligations.

On or before August 306 of each fiscal year, GDB, as fiscal agent, will determine the
COFIM deposit applicable to the current fiscal year. An amount equal to the COFIM's
depos¡t from the first collections of the sales and use tax for that fiscal year shall be
deposited ¡n the Redemption Fund of the COFIM.

DUE FROM OTHER AGENCIES

Represents grants and contributions due from local and federal agencies:

Puerto Flico Electric Power Author¡ty $ 2,727,559
cRlM 1.t7,821
Administration for Children and Family (Head Start Program) 196,200
Elderly Affairs Office (Title lll Program) 81,595
Admin¡stration for Children and Family (Early Head Start Program) 58,299
Administration for Children and Family (Food Program) 54,227
OCAM (CDBG Program) 168,309

$ 3,404,010
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9. INTERFUNDTRANSACTIONS

a. Due From/To Other Funds:

The due from and due to other fund balances as of June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General
General
Other Governmental

HHS
Other Governmental
General

$ 123,086
209,214
72,520

$ 404,820

The balance of 972,520 due to the general fund from the Other Governmental
Fund represents amount due from prior years related to state contributions'
grants. Remaining transfers are used to use unrestricted revenues collected in the
general fund to finance various programs accounted for ¡n other funds in
accordance with budgetary authorizations.

b. lnterfund Transfers:

lntelund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2o1s consisted of the following:

Transfer ln Transfer Out Amount

General
Debt Serv¡ce

Debt Service
General

$ 1,378
168,772

$ 170,150

The transfers are used to (1) move revenues lrom the fund that statute or budget
revenues to collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend
them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the fund collection to the
debt service fund as debt serv¡ce payments become due, (3) use unrestricted
revenues collected in the generalfund to finance various programs accounted for
in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.
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10. CAPITALASSETS

a. Primary Government

Capital asset activity for the Municipality for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as
follows:

Prlmary Govemmerf
Balancc Salanca

June 30, 2014 lncrease! Decrea36! June 30. 2015

Govemmental Actlvitieg:
Capilal assets, not be¡ng depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress

Total cap¡tal assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, be¡ng deprec¡ated:
Land improvement
Build¡ngs and build¡ng improveme¡ts
Equipment
Work of arts
Vehicles
lnfrastructu re
Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvement
Buildings and buiUing ¡mprovements
Equipment
Work of arts
Veh¡cles
lnlrastructure
f otal accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being deprec¡ated, net

Govemmental act¡vit¡es capital assets, net

2,810,380
1,019.019 126.463

3'!,078.896

s ,,169.925 S S -
802,196 1?4,20a 64.128

1,972,121 t74,20a 64.12A

r,552.433
33,892,838 463.9s1

1 .237,455 42,562
94.230

2,677,48 113,627
5,03r,641

44,486,080 660,140

3.962.927 674. 2

2.750
2.445.720 78.105
2,704.787 140.383

12.991,083 1.076,241

31,494,997 (416,101)

s 33,467,118 S {241,89í})

s 1,169.925
912,276

2.082,201

1,552,?83
34,356.789

1,320,O17
94.230

2.791,1 10
5.031,641

45,146.220

4,637,869
2,863,978
1.145,482

11.000
2,563.825
2.8r',5,170

14.067.324

s 64.128 $ 33,161.097

the Municipali§ asDepreciat¡on expense was charged to functionVprograms of
follows:

General government
Public safety
Health and welfare
Becreat¡on
Public works

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities
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b. Business-Type Government

BualnsaS-type govornment

Govommonial Activltlesr
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land
Total cap¡tal assets, not be¡ng deprec¡ated

Capilal asse§, be¡ng deprec¡ated:
Build¡ng
Total capital assets, being deprec¡ated

Less accumulated depreciat¡on for:
Building
Tolal accumulated deprec¡at¡on

Total cap¡ial assets, being depreciated, net

Business type govemmenl assels

11. DUETO OTHER AGENCIES

Balance Bahnco
June «¡, ml4 lncreaaea Decr€aae! Jun€ 30, 2O1S

$40,000§$40,oOO
40,000

2,420,514
2,420,514

96,020
96,020

2,324,494

s 2.364.494

144,4i1048,410
48.4't0

(48,410)

-§.Jt9.t19t

2,276,OA4

s s 2.316.084

Governmental
Activitias

Buslness-Typ€
Act¡v¡ties

Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority $
Puerto Rico Water and Sewer Author¡ty
General Serv¡ces Admin¡stration
Labor Department

2,727,559
64,248
31 ,138

$
19,249

2,727,559
83,497
31,138

14.085 14,085

Total $ 2,837,030 $ 19,249 S 2,856,279

12. DEFERREDINFLOWSOF RESOURCES

a. Municipal License Taxes

The deferred inflows of resources approximately SS02,040 in the general fund
related to municipal l¡cense tax collected in fiscal yeat 2O14-ZO'15 that will be
earned in fiscal year 2015-2016.
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b. Federal Government

The defened inflows of resources presented as federal government represents
the portion of federal grants received for which qualifying expenditures have not
been incurred.

The amounts were determined taklng ¡nto consideration the specific years of the
grant.

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES

lntergovernmental revenues in the general and capital projects funds consist mainly
of collections from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and the CRIM, and payments in
lieu of taxes from the Puerto Rico Electr¡c Power Authority.

LONG.TERM DEBTS

Bonds and other longterm liabilities outstanding at June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Bonds

$570,000 series of 2002, payable in annual ¡nstallments
of $10,000 to $50,000 until July 1,2026, interest from
2.7Yo lo 5.6o/o. $ 365,000

$2,000,000 series of 2001 , payable in annual
installments of $20,000 to $175,000 until July 't,2026,
interest from 5o/o lo 7o/". 1,345,000

$638,800 series of 2002, payable in annual installments
of $10,700 to $49,200 until July 1, 2027, interest from
5o/" lo 7 .5o/o.

$670,000 series of 2003, payable in annual ¡nstallments
of $10,000 to $50,000 until July 1,2028, interest from
5o/o lo 7 .5o/".

427,300
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$2,135,000 series of 2005, payable in annual
installments of $65,000 to $165,000 until July 1,2024,
interest from 4.37Yo to 6.5%.

$455,000 series of 2004, payable in annual installments
of $15,000 to $35,000 until July '1,2024, ¡nterest from
3 .27"/o to 6 .5"/" .

$1,110,000 series of 2008, payable ¡n annual
installments of $25,000 to $10,000 until July 1, 2021,
interest from 6.48% lo 7.5o/o.

$420,000 series of 2010, payable in annual installments
of $50,000 to $75,000 until July 1, 2016, interest from
5o/o lo 7o/o.

$1 ,710,000 series of 2010, payable in annual
installments of S25,000 to $145,000 unt¡l July 1,2034,
interest from 67" lo 7.5o/".

$100,000 series of 2010, payable in annual installments
of $5,000 to $20,000 until July 1,2026, interest from 6%
lo 7 .5"/".

S3,635,000 series of 20'12, payable in annual
¡nstallments of S55,000 to $310,000 until July 1, 2036,
¡nterest from 6% lo 7.5"/".

Total bonds and notes payable

$ 1,220,000

260,000

840,000

75,000

1,530,000

70,000

3,400,000

s 9,997,300

-42-



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS

NOTES TO THE FINANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONTTNUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Other Lonq-Term Liabilities

Note payable of $203,419 represents a repayment
agreement with GDB and CRIM to repay the excess of
proper§ taxes advances from fiscal years up to 2001.
The CRIM will retain the principal and interest from the
propefi taxes advances. The amounts retained by
CRIM will be remitted to GDB on July 'l of each year
through 2032. The repayment agreement is payable in
annual aggregate principal installments of $15,024 plus 156,355

The annual debt service requirements forthe bonds payable and notes payable at
June 30, 2015, are as follows:

Notes Payable
lnteresi Princ¡pal lnterest

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021-2025
2026-2030
203f-2035
2036-2037

Princ¡pal

$ 325,000
260,000
275,000
29s,000
310,000

1,650,000
725,0@
520,000

$ 215,544
2s5,733
239,930
2U,733
219,626
737,395
329,100
101,250

$ 199,600
211,200
237,900
249,700
266,600

1,671,901C
1,265,400
1,225,000

$ 295,369
3s9,562
346,165
331,016
321,8U

1,373,249
816,674
405,750

23,250

$ 4,272,869

310.000

$ 4,360,000 $2,333.311 $ s,637,300
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NOTES TO THE F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONTTNUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 201S, was as follows:

Prinlary Govemment
Beg¡nning
Balañco Additions

Gov6mm€ntal Ac$v¡tie3:
Bonds payabte S 4,660,000 S -
Notes payabte 5,825,400

Totallong-térm debts 1O,4BS,¡IOO

Othef Long-tarm L¡ab¡liües:
CBIM - Law 42

Cla¡ms and judgments

CRIM
Compensated absences

Total other long-term liabilities

Total noncurrent tiabililies,
governmental activfies

15. FUND BALANCES

161,¿t4O

17,UO

183,868 2.17,882
'l ,205,503 417,740

1,568.651 635.622

End¡ng
Paym€nt3 Balanc€

Duo w¡th¡n
One Year

s 4,360,000 $ 325,OOO
5,637,300 199.600

9,997,300 524.600

'156,355 9,912
7,840

401,750
1,623,24a|

2,189,188 9.912

s 300,000
188,100

,188,100

5,085

10,000

15.085

Debt
Gensral Serv¡ce Total

Bestricted:
General govemment
Public safety
Publ¡c works
Health and welfare
Debt service

Comm¡tted:
General govemment
Public works

Ass¡gned:
General govemmenl
Public safety
Culture and recreat¡on
Health and welfare

Unassigned

7,124
148

2,237
10,321

5,994,411

1 ,613,052

7,526 6.001.937

§6,014,2,15 S1,613.052 s 269.858 § 3.972.621 $11.869.176

§ 56,8 17
54,422

1 ,391,150
30,689

119
2,425,O78

s 56,817
54,422

r,391,150
3@,547

1,613,052

119
2,425,O7A

7,128
148

2,237
17 ,141

$ r2,054,051 $ 635.622 § s03,185 S 12,186,488 $ s34.512

H6ad Start
Program

$

269,858

Other
Govemmental

Funda
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF OUEBRADILLAS

NOTES TO THE FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTTNUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

16. NET POSITION

Net pos¡tion invested in capital assets, net of related debt, is comprised of the
following:

Capital assets, net of accumulated
Outstanding balance on capital related debt
Unspent cap¡tal debt proceeds

Total ¡nvested in capital assets, net of related
debt

17. RETIREMENTPLAN

$33,161,097
(4,360,000)
1,524,536

s30,325,633

a. Plan Description

Substantially all Municipality's full time employees are under the Employees'
Ret¡rement System of the Government of the Commonwealth of puerto Rico
(ERS). The ERS is a cost-shar¡ng, multi-employer defined benefit pens¡on plan
administered by the Government Employees System Administration and was
established by Act No. 447 onMay 15, 1951. Act No. 447 was significanfly
modified by Act. No. 1 of 1990 and by Act 305 of 1999, tater known as System
2000.

b. Benefits Provided

Retirement benefits for municipalis employees include relirement, disabili§,
death, vested and nonvested withdrawals. Employees retiring prior to July I , 201 3,
annuity benefits are sublect to $500 minimum monthly. Other benefits for
qualifying employees include additional min¡mum pens¡on, ad-hoc cost-of-living
adjustment (COLAS), benefits due to death and d¡sability, medical insurance plan
contr¡but¡on, Christmas bonus, and medication bonus.

Plan members were eligible for merit annuity as long as they have 30 years or
more of credited service. The annu¡ty is limited to a minimum of 65% and a
maximum ol 757" ol the average compensat¡on.

Act No. 3, as enacted by leg¡slat¡on in April 4, 2013, constituted a comprehensive
a reform of the EHS. Act No. 3 became effective on July 1, 2013 and amended
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NOTES TO THE F|NANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

the provisions of the different benefit structures under the ERS, including, but not
l¡mited to, the following:

1. For active participants of the contributory defined benefit program under Act
No. 447 of 1951 and Act No. 1 of 1990, all requirement benefits accrued
through June 30,2013 were frozen, and thereafter, all future benefits will
accrue under the defined contribution formula used for System 2000
partic¡pants, and will be paid a retirement through lifetime annui§.

2. lncreased the minimum pension for current retirees from $400 to $S00 per
month.

The ret¡rement age for Act No. 447 participants is gradually increased from
age 58 to age 61.

The retirement age for System 2000 participants ¡s gradually increased from
age 60 to age 65.

Transitioning active participants under Act No. 1 and Act No. 447 to a defined
contribution plan similar to System 2000.

Eliminated the merit annuity available who joined the ERS prior to April 1,
1990.

7. The retirement age for new employees was increased to age 67, except for
new state and municipal pol¡ce officers, firefighters, and custody officers, which
will be age 58.

8. The employee contr¡bution rate was increased lrom B.Z7S7" to 1O%.

9. For System 2000 participants, the retirement will no longer be paid as a lump
sum distribution, instead, they will be paid through a lifetime annu¡ty.

10. Eliminated or reduced various ret¡rement benefits previously granted by special
laws, including Chr¡stmas and summer bonuses. The Christmas bonus
payable to current retirees was reduced from $600 to $200 and was eliminated

3.

4.

5.

6.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS

NOTES TO THE FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTTNUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2015

for future retirees. The summer bonus was eliminated. Result¡ng employer
contribution saving will be contributed to the ERS.

1 1. Disabil¡ty benefits were eliminated and substituted for a mandatory d¡sab¡l¡ty
insurance policy.

'12. Survivor benefits were modified.

Contribution Requirements

Employer and employee obligations to contribute, as well as employee
contribution rates, are included in the enabling pension statutes as delineated in
Act No. 3 of 2013, with varying provisions for the three-group as Act 447
employees, Act 1 employees, and System 2000 employees.

Pursuant to Act No.116 of 20'l 1, employer conlribution is increased by 1olo
annually.f rom 9 .275"/" ol compensat¡on to I 0.275% beginning on July 1 

r, 201 2 to
June 30s, 2016. Act No. 1 16 ¡ncludes subsequent increaseé ol 1.2SoA annually
from July 1st, 2016 to June 30m, 2021 .

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows ol Resources
and D,eferred lnflows of Resources Related to pensions

GASB Statement 68 on Accounting and Financ¡al Reporting for pensions
establishes for cost sharing government-employers plans to report their
proportional share ol the plan's net pension liability, deferred outflows of
resources, and defened inflows of resources in the¡r statements of net pos¡tion.
As of June 30, 2015, the required ¡nformation for the proportional share of the
pension l¡ab¡l¡ty, pension expense, and the related deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources was not available from the ERS.

The most recent available financial statements of the pension funds are for the
year ended June 30, 2013, which reflected a significant unfunded actuarial tiability.
This financial information included a decrease ol 1.4o/o in the funded rat¡o of the
actuarial accrued liability for pension benefits, 3.1% and 4.S% at June 30, 2013
and 2012, respectively. Furthermore, the ERS's financial report for the year
ended June 30, 2014 and the amount of contributions recognized by the pension
plan from the Municipality were not available as of June 30, 201S.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO HICO
MUNICIPALITY OF OUEBRADILLAS

NOTES TO THE F|NANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTTNUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2015

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Risk Management Division of the Municipality's Legal Department is respons¡ble
of assuring that the Municipali§'s property is properly insured. Annually, ine R¡st
Management Division compiles the information of-all property ownéd and ¡ts
respect¡ve market value. After evaluating this information, the áisk Management
Division subm¡ts the data regarding the Municipality's properties to the Area oI publ¡c
lnsurance at the Department of the Treasury of the commonwealth of puerto Rico
who.is responsible for purchasing all property and casuals insurance policies of all
municipalities.

LEASES

Operating Leases

Leasing Arrangement with the Municipalis as Lessor:

a. The Municipalis leases spaces in its Market place under operating lease
agreements with terms ranging from one to five years.

b. Total income from leases dur¡ng the year ended June 30, 2015 was approximately
s52,070.

c. The Municipalis retains title to ¡ts leased property. The lessee pays taxes,
licenses, insurance, and ma¡ntenance costs of the láased assets.

The. Municipality is obligated under noncancellable operational leases, with periods
not longer than one year.

CONTINGENCIES

The Municipality rece¡ves Federal Grants for specific purposes that are subject to
review .and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could geñerate
expend¡ture disallowances under the terms of the grants, management beliéves that
any required reimbursements would not be mater¡al.

19.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOB THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

21. COMMITMENTS

The Municipality of Quebradillas had outstanding or planned construction proiects as
of June 30, 2015. These prolects are evidenced by contractual commitmeñts with
contractors. The construction projects are commitments of the Other Governmental
Funds that amounted to approximately $646,489.

22. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

ln preparing these financial slalements, the Municipality has evaluated events and
transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through January 27, 201 6, the date
on which the financial statements were available to be issued.
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COMII/IONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF OUEBRAOILLAS

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

REVENUES
Property taxes
¡runicipal license taxes
Sales and use taxes
Licenses and permits
Charges lor services and rent
lntergovernmental revenues:

State contr¡butions
lnterest, fines, and penalties
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDIfURES
Current:

General government
Public safety
Publ¡c works
Recreation
Health and welfare

Total expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Heprogramm¡ng funds

Excess of revenues over
expenditufes

s 1,891,845
710,000
864,500
300,300

64,000

6,008,529
151,500
170,000

10,160,674

5,766,092
749,931

2,568,744
288,852
787.055

1,891,845
710,000
864,500
300,300

64,000

6,r 66,626
151,500
170,000

10,3't 8,771

Aclual Amounts
(Budgetary Basis)

(See Note 1)

§ I,891,845
779.530
993,310
263,362
68,186

6, t75,465
145,951
173,652

10,491,301

Varlancs with
F¡ml Budgot-

Pos¡llve
(Negat¡ve)

69,530
128.810
(36,938)

4,186

8,839
(5,s49)
3,652

172,530

6,155,,144
742,740

2,765,329
252,947
772,311

't0,688,771

370,000

$-

5,495,281
728,986

2,729,669
230,990
687.403

660,163
13.754
35,660
21,957
84,908

816,442'r 0,160,674 I,A72,329

370.000

s 988,972

Erplanation of DiffererEé€:
Sources/lnllowS of resourcs3:

Actual arñounts (br/dgetary bas¡s) 'avaitabte for áppropnaton. lrom Ih€ budgelary comparison schedule
oifrérences - budget to GAAP:

Nel change in receivables

fotal revenues as repoled on lhe staiement of revenues. expendiiures, ¿md changes in fund batances
Usés/outfl ows ot rcsources:

Aclual amounls (budgetary bas¡s) lotal chañggs to appropriatioñs. from the budgelary compañson schedulo
oiíererrces - budget to GAAP:

Prior year eflcumbrances recoded as curent year expenditures lor GAAP basis
Nel change rn payables

Cúrrenl yea, encumbrances reclded as expend¡tures lor budgetary purposes

Tolal expenditures as reported on the stalement ot r€v€nues, expenditures, and changes in fund batances

The accompanying note to Budgetary Comparison Schedule
is an integral part of this schedule.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPAL¡TY OF OUEBRADiLLAS

NOTE TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE. GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - STEWABDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Control

The Municipality's annual budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting, which
is not in accordance with account¡ng principles generally accepted in the united states of
America, and represents departmental appropriat¡ons recommended by the Mayor and
approved by the Municipal Legislature prior to the beginning of the fiscal year.
Amendments to the budget require the approval of the Municipal Legislature. Transfers of
certain appropriat¡ons with¡n the budget known as Mayo/s Executive orders do not require
the approval of the Municipal Legislature. The Municipality prepares its annual budget
including the operations of the general fund.

For budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounting is used. The encumbrances (i.e.,
purchase orders, contracts) are cons¡dered expenditures when incurred. For usGAAp
reporting purposes, encumbrances outstand¡ng at year-end are reported as reservat¡ons of
fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liab¡lities because the commitments
will be honored during the subsequent year. ln addition, under the budgetary basis of
accounting, revenues are recorded when cash is received.

The unencumbered balance of any appropriat¡on at the end of the fiscal year will lapse at
the end of such fiscal year. other appropriations, mainly cap¡tal pro¡ect appropriat¡ons, are
continuing accounts lor which the Municipal Legislature has authorized that an unspent
balance from the prior year be canied forward and made available for current spending.

The annual budget as presented in the Budgetary comparison schedule - General Fund is
the budget resolutions at June 30, 2015 representing the orig¡nal budget.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF OUEBRADILLAS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDM'RES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOB THE FISCAL YEAF ENDED JUNE 30, 2Of5

Federal Grantor/Program Title

Federal
CFDA
Number

U.S. Department of Hous¡ng and Urban Development (HUD)
Direct Programs:

Section I Housing Choice Vouchers
Pass-through Comm¡ssioner Office of Municipal Aftairs -

Community Development Block Grani/State's Program
Neighborhood Stabil¡zation Program (NSP3) - Recovery Act Funded

Pass-through Department of Family:
Emergency Shelter Grants Program (Prevention)

Subtotal U.S. Department of HUO

U.S. Oepartment of Agriculture
Pass-through Educat¡on Department:

Child and Adult Care Food Program-Child Care
Ch¡ld and Adult Care Food Program-Head Starl

Subtotal U-S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. Depañment of Juslice
Direct Program:
Crime Mctim Ass¡stance

Subtotal U.S. Department of Juslice

U.S. Department ot Health and Human Services (HHS)
Pass-through the Puerto Rico Govemo/s Ofi¡ce (Elderly Affairs
Oft¡ce):

Spec¡al Programs for the Aging, T¡tle lll, Part C
Spec¡al Programs for the Aging, Title lll, Part E
Nutrit¡on Services lncent¡ve Program

Pass-through the Ofiice of Adm¡nistration for Children and Famil¡es:
Ch¡ld and Care and Development Block Grant

Pass-through the Off¡ce of Adm¡nistration lor Children and Families:
Head Start
Early Head Start

Subtoial U.S. Department of HHS

TOTAL

14.871

14.22A
14.22A

14.231

Federal
DlsbursementV

Erpenditurea

$ 252,522

668,351
11 ,2188

20,898
953,259

4s,343
240,800

41,474
26,968
62,435

167,447

2,620,503
375,882

3,294,709

4,555,305

10.558
10.558

16.575 1S4
194

93.045
93.045
93.053

93.575

93.600
93.600

See notes to schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SIGNlFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying schedule of Expend¡tures of Federal Awards includes the federal
grant activ¡ty of the Municipality of Quebradillas and ¡s presented on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. The information ¡n this schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may ditfer from amounts presented in, or used in the
preparation of, the basic financial statements.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The expenditures of the schedule are included in the Municipality's basic financial
statements ¡n the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expendilures and Changes
in Fund Balances-Governmental Funds. The reconc¡liation of expenditures in ihe
basic financial statements to the schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is a
follows:

Expenditures

2.

Expenditures as per basic financial statements:

Federal expend¡tures included within:

Other governmental funds
Health and Human Services fund

Total

Total expenditures per schedule of expenditures
of federal awards

$ 1,260,596
3.294.709

$___4§55it05

s___4555305
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INDEPENDENT AUD¡TORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER F¡NANCIAL
REPORTTNG AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PEBFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Municipal Legislature

Municipality of Quebradillas
Quebradillas, Puerto Rico

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audils contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipali§ of
Quebradillas, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the
f inancial statements, wh¡ch collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 27 ,2016. The report on the
governmental activities was qualified because the management has not recorded the
defened outflows/inflows of resources, and net pens¡on liability, and has not recorded an
expense for current period change in that liabili§.

lnternal Control over Financial Reporting

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
Municipality's internal control over financial report¡ng (internal control) to determine the
aud¡t procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances forthe purpose of expressing
our opinions on the f¡nancial statements, but no for the purpose ol expressing an opinion
on lhe effectiveness of the Munic¡pality's ¡nternal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipality's internal control.

A deficiency in ¡nternal contrcl ex¡sts when the design or operat¡on of a control does not
allow management or employees, ¡n the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A mater¡al
weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in ¡nternal control, such that there
is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the enti§'s financ¡al statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency
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is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal controlthat is less severe than
a mater¡al weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described ¡n the first
paragraph of th¡s section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We d¡d ident¡fy
certain deficiency in internal control, described ¡n the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs that we consider to be material weakness as item 2015-001.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obta¡ning reasonable assurance about whether the Municipality's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a d¡rect and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, prov¡d¡ng an opinion on compliance w¡th those provisions
was not an oblective of our aud¡t, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests d¡sclosed no ¡nstances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under GovemmentAuditing Standardsandwhich are described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned cost as item 2015-001 .

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our test¡ng of ¡nternal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an op¡n¡on on the
effect¡veness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standardsin considering
the ent¡ty's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

San Juan, Puerto Flico
January 27,2016

The stamp E19¿t884 of
Society of Certif¡ed
was affixed to the

!t2,uudQ;Lan t 4
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOHS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY OMB C¡RCULAR A.133

To the Honorable Mayor
and Municipal Leg¡slature

Municipality of Quebradillas
Quebradillas, Puerto Rico

Report on Compliance for each Major Federal Program

We have audited Municipali§ of Quebradillas' compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a d¡rect and
material effect on each of Municipality's major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2015. Municipali§'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditofs results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibili§

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulat¡ons,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibili§

Our responsibility ¡s to express an opinion on compliance for each of Mun¡cipal¡ty's major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance w¡th audit¡ng standards
generally accepted ¡n the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizat¡ons. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompl¡ance with
the §pes of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a d¡rect and
mater¡al etfect on a major federal program occurred. An aud¡t ¡ncludes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about Municipali§'s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for
each malor federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Municipality's compliance.

Opinion on Each Maior Federal Program

ln our opinion, the Municipality complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and mater¡al effect on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Beport on lnternal Control over Compliance

Management of Municipality is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements refened to
above. ln plann¡ng and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Municipality's
¡nternal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a d¡rect and
material etfect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing
an op¡nion on the effect¡veness of ¡nternal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Municipality's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in ¡nternal control over compliance exists when the design or operation ol a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, ¡n the normal course of
pelorming their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompl¡ance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibili§
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requ¡rement of a federal program
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deiiciency
¡n ¡nternal control over compl¡ance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance w¡th a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the lim¡ted purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not des¡gned to ¡dentify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compl¡ance that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may ex¡st that
have not been identified.
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The purpose of this report on ¡nternal control over compl¡ance is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that test¡ng
based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable
for any other purpose.

San Juan, Puerto
January 27, 2016

The stamp E194885
Soc¡ety of Certif ied
was affixed to the

1'r,2,rra,a,rr" I ¿Kffi

ffi
6"ño rroo-
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF OUEBRADILLAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2015

1. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

F¡nancial Statements

Type of auditors' report ¡ssued:

Governmental activities
Governmental funds
Business-Type Act¡vit¡es

lnternal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness (es) identified?

Signif icant def iciency (ies) identif ied?

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards

lnternal control over malor programs:

Material weakness (es) identified?

Signif icant def iciency (ies) identif ied?

Modified ooinion
Unmodified ooinion
Unmodified opinion

X Yes

X Yes

None
Yes X reported

No

No

Yes X No

None
Yes X reported

Type of auditors' report issued on compl¡ance for
malor programs: Unmodified opinion

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance w¡th section 510 (a) of
OMB Circular A-133? Yes X No
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS

ScHEDULE OF FTNDTNGS AND OUESTTONED COSTS (CONTTNUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2015

ldentificat¡on of major programs:

CFDA Numbers

CFDA 93.600
CFDA 93.600
cFoA 14.228
0FDA14.228

Audited qualified as low-risk auditee?

FIND¡NGS . FINANC]AL STATEMENTS AUDIT

Head Start
Early Head Start
Community Development Block Grant
Neighborhood Stabilization

X Yes No

Dollar threshold used to dist¡nguish between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000

¡ 2015-001 : lmp¡ementat¡on of GASB 68

Condition

Management has not recorded the deferred inf lows/outf lows of the resources, and
net position liabil¡ty related to pensions in governmental activities and, has not
recorded and expense for the current per¡od change in that liabil¡ty.

Criteria

Statement No. 68 of the Govemment Account¡ng Standard Board, Account¡ng and
Financial Reporting for Pensions, required to recogn¡ze a l¡ab¡lity as employees
earn their pension benefits (that is, as they provide services to the government).
The employers participating in cost-sharing plans will recognize the¡r proportionate
share of the collective pension amounts for all benef¡ts provided through the plan.
Pension amounts to be recognized by employers include the net pension liability,
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and pension
expense. To the extent that a longterm obligation to provide pension benefits
(that is, total pension liabili§) is larger than the value of the assets available in the
plan to pay pens¡on benefits, there is a collective net pension liability for which
each employer w¡ll need to report ¡ts proport¡onate share in their financial
statements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF OUEBRADILLAS

SCHEDULE OF FTNDTNGS AND QUESTTONED COSTS (CONTTNUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Cause

The Employees' Retirement System of the Government of Puerto Rico did not
prov¡de the data related to pension expense and obligation change attributable to
the Mun¡cipality.

Recommendat¡on

Obtain the pension data from the Employees' Retirement System of the
Government of Puerto Bico.

3. FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDEBAL AWARD PROGRAM
AUDIT

None
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COIIIIONWEALIH OF PUERf,O BICO
MUNICIPAL]TY OF OUEBRADILLAS

SCHEDULE OF STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR
AUDIT FINDINGS A¡ID OUESNONED COSI§

FOR THE FISCAL YEAF ENDED JUNE 3{', 2015

t 
The Municipality has no prior year findings and questioned costs to give follow up.

L

L

L

t
t
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